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Request for Bid Q01133 
Furnish All Necessary Supplies, Labor & Equipment for 

Professional Janitorial Services for the Facilities Department at Harper College 
Addendum #1 

November 8, 2023 
 

 
All changes to the Request for Bid (RFB) are valid only if they are issued by written addendum.  Each respondent must acknowledge 
receipt of any addenda in their bid submission.  Each respondent, by acknowledging receipt of any addenda, is responsible for the 
contents of the addenda and any changes to the bid therein.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of any addenda may cause the bid to be 
rejected.  If any language or figures contained in this addendum are in conflict with the original document this addendum shall prevail. 
 
 
This addendum consists of the following questions received: 

 
1. Can the 10% bid deposit be from a business check? 

Response: No, bid deposit needs to be a bid bond, cashier’s check or a certified check. 
 

2. Is the subcontractor page (Pg. 32) required since we are not subcontracting any of that work? 
Response: It can be left blank if no subcontractors are going to be utilized.  Note: There is a 30% BEP participation goal 
established for this contract.  All BEP forms need to completed and returned with your bid submission. 
 

3. Is the cleaning staff required to be present in the building during the entire (8) hours indicated in the contract? 
Response: The manhours worked will be up to the Contractor ensuring that the facility meets the daily standard of cleaning. 
 

4. The bid deposit is 10% of the annual cost for both facilities. Is that correct? 
Response: Bid security in the form of a bid bond in an amount equal to 10 percent (10%) of the aggregate of the Base Bid 
amount and all Alternate Bid amounts shall be submitted with the bid for the first year. 
 

5. What is the current monthly cost for both facilities? 
Response: Please refer to the attached current contract. 

 
6. Who is the current vendor and for how long? 

Response: Please refer to the attached current contract. 
 

7. What are the current vendor's daily, weekly, and monthly rates? 
Response: Please refer to the attached current contract. 
 

8. What crew size is the current vendor using at Harper College Learning & Career Center? 
Response:The College will not provide that information at this time. 
 

9. What crew size is the current vendor using at Harper College Professional Center? 
Response:  The College will not provide that information at this time. 
 

10. Can you please breakdown and provide the exact square footage for carpet vs tile at each facility? 
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Response: Please refer to the attached document with square footage on each room. The highlighted rooms are the hard 
surface areas and note the total square footage at the top of page for each location. Please refer to pg. 16 of the request 
for bid document for the total square footage of each location. 
 

11. Do you accept certified bank check or a cashiers check in lieu of a bid bond? 
Response: Yes 
 

12. Are we bidding this as if we were going to be cleaning the Harper College Learning Center & Career Center 5 days a week or 2 days 
a week? 
Response: Base bid for Learning & Career Center is for 5 days a week. Base bid for Harper Professional Center is for 2 
days a week. Please be sure to include rates under Option 1 and Alternative Bid for both locations.  Please note the College 
reserves the right to increase the number of days at the Harper Professional Center should our requirements change.  You 
will be compensated for the increase based on the daily rates provided on the bid form. 

 
13. Can you please clarify what percentage of BEP participation is required?  The statement below has conflicting information. 

Contract Goal to be Achieved by Vendor: This solicitation includes a specific BEP participation goal of 30% of the total dollar amount 
awarded to MBEs and FBEs, with at least 50% of the total dollar amount awarded to FBEs.    
Response: Although this is not a requirement there is a 30 percent aspirational goal on the contract.  It is preferred that 
30% goal is achieved equally by MBE and FBE vendors.  However, the College will accept any combination of participation 
you are able to achieve. 

 
14. Could Harper College please provide a square footage breakdown of tile vs carpet for each of the two buildings of service? If possible, 

could the College also provide the quantity of chairs and furniture to be shampooed annually? 
Response: Please refer to the attached document with square footage on each room. The highlighted rooms are the hard 
surface areas and note the total square footage at the top of page for each location.  

 
Sincerely, 
  
 
Nathan Chung 
Purchasing Specialist 
Purchasing@harpercollege.edu. 

mailto:Purchasing@harpercollege.edu


BUILDING FLOOR ROOM# SQFT USAGE

Indicates 
Tile 
Surface

Total Tile 
1813 sq ft

HPC 1 101 723 Corridor
HPC 1 102 914 Classroom
HPC 1 103 1183 Office
HPC 1 104 169 Office
HPC 1 105 130 Office
HPC 1 106 161 Office Service
HPC 1 107 60 Public Restroom
HPC 1 108 35 Public Restroom
HPC 1 109 102 Central Computer
HPC 1 110 263 Conference Room
HPC 1 111 199 Public Restroom
HPC 1 112 195 Public Restroom
HPC 1 113 43 Custodial Closet
HPC 1 114 236 Corridor
HPC 1 115 216 Corridor
HPC 1 116 274 Office
HPC 1 117 759 Classroom
HPC 1 118 773 Classroom
HPC 1 119 776 Classroom
HPC 1 120 773 Classroom
HPC 1 121 815 Classroom
HPC 1 122 818 Classroom
HPC 1 123 779 Classroom
HPC 1 124 779 Classroom
HPC 1 125 202 Public Restroom
HPC 1 126 201 Public Restroom
HPC 1 127 496 Unit Storage
HPC 1 128 917 Corridor
HPC 1 129 1370 Corridor
HPC 1 130 970 Corridor
HPC 1 131 468 Corridor
HPC 1 132 166 Corridor
HPC 1 133 142 Corridor
HPC 1 134 284 Corridor
HPC 1 135 383 Lounge
HPC 1 136 434 Corridor
HPC 1 137 814 Classroom
HPC 1 138 940 Classroom
HPC 1 139 939 Classroom
HPC 1 141 187 Unit Storage
HPC 1 150 458 Public Waiting
HPC 1 151 162 Office

Harper College Professional Center



HPC 1 152 118 Office
HPC 1 153 153 Office
HPC 1 154 441 Classroom
HPC 1 155 161 Office
HPC 1 157 172 Corridor
HPC 1 158 80 Office
HPC 1 159 103 Office Service
HPC 1 160 81 Office
HPC 1 162 82 Central Computer
HPC 1 164 153 Corridor
HPC 1 165 509 Study Room
HPC 1 166 330 Corridor
HPC 1 167 856 Corridor
HPC 1 168 290 Corridor
HPC 1 169 83 Mechanical Space
HPC 1 170 0 Condo
HPC 1 171 0 Condo
HPC 1 172 0 Condo
HPC 1 173 0 Condo
HPC 1 174 0 Condo
HPC 1 175 0 Condo
HPC 1 176 0 Condo
HPC 1 177 0 Condo
HPC 1 178 0 Condo
HPC 1 179 0 Condo
HPC 1 180 0 Condo
HPC 1 182 239 Corridor
HPC 1 198 253 Leased
HPC 1 201 439 Corridor
HPC 1 212 333 Office
HPC 1 213 194 Conference Room
HPC 1 214 82 Office
HPC 1 215 84 Office
HPC 1 216 84 Office
HPC 1 217 83 Office
HPC 1 218 118 Public Restroom
HPC 1 219 114 Public Restroom
HPC 1 220 48 Unit Storage
HPC 1 221 616 Class Laboratory
HPC 1 222 599 Class Laboratory
HPC 1 223 654 Class Laboratory
HPC 1 224 654 Class Laboratory
HPC 1 230 0 Condo
HPC 1 231 0 Condo
HPC 1 232 0 Condo
HPC 1 233 0 Condo
HPC 1 234 0 Condo



HPC 1 235 0 Condo
HPC 1 236 0 Condo
HPC 1 237 0 Condo
HPC 1 238 0 Condo
HPC 1 239 0 Condo
HPC 1 240 0 Condo
HPC 1 241 0 Condo
HPC 1 245 64 Corridor
HPC 1 246 252 Office
HPC 1 247 560 Office Service
HPC 1 248 134 Office
HPC 1 249 268 Office
HPC 1 255 40 Shell Space
HPC 1 256 339 Shell Space
HPC 1 258 69 Shell Space
HPC 1 260 112 Shell Space
HPC 1 262 138 Shell Space
HPC 1 263 159 Shell Space
HPC 1 265 96 Public Waiting
HPC 1 266 143 Public Waiting
HPC 1 267 522 Meeting Room
HPC 1 268 146 Conference Room
HPC 1 269 160 Office
HPC 1 270 138 Office
HPC 1 271 137 Office
HPC 1 272 127 Office
HPC 1 273 71 Office
HPC 1 274 71 Office
HPC 1 275 84 Corridor
HPC 1 276 267 Classroom
HPC 1 277 864 Classroom
HPC 1 280 29 Shell Space
HPC 1 281 209 Shell Space
HPC 1 282 115 Shell Space
HPC 1 283 139 Shell Space
HPC 1 284 177 Shell Space
HPC 1 285 49 Shell Space
HPC 1 286 92 Shell Space
HPC 1 287 24 Shell Space
HPC 1 288 117 Shell Space
HPC 1 289 152 Shell Space
HPC 1 290 134 Shell Space
HPC 1 300 42 Shell Space
HPC 1 301 230 Shell Space
HPC 1 302 85 Shell Space
HPC 1 303 145 Shell Space
HPC 1 304 116 Shell Space



HPC 1 305 155 Shell Space
HPC 1 306 81 Shell Space
HPC 1 307 29 Shell Space
HPC 1 308 17 Shell Space
HPC 1 309 194 Shell Space
HPC 1 310 46 Shell Space
HPC 1 311 65 Shell Space
HPC 1 312 56 Shell Space
HPC 1 313 174 Shell Space
HPC 1 314 137 Shell Space
HPC 1 315 52 Shell Space
HPC 1 316 305 Shell Space
HPC 1 317 101 Shell Space
HPC 1 318 129 Shell Space
HPC 1 319 46 Shell Space
HPC 1 320 46 Shell Space
HPC 1 321 46 Shell Space
HPC 1 322 545 Shell Space
HPC 1 150A 45 Public Restroom
HPC 1 157A 40 Unit Storage
HPC 1 164A 39 Unit Storage
HPC 1 165A 43 Public Restroom
HPC 1 166A 62 Mechanical Space
HPC 1 169A 258 Corridor
HPC 1 171A 0 Condo
HPC 1 171B 0 Condo
HPC 1 175A 0 Condo
HPC 1 175B 0 Condo
HPC 1 178A 0 Condo
HPC 1 180A 0 Condo
HPC 1 180B 0 Condo
HPC 1 180C 0 Condo
HPC 1 180D 0 Condo
HPC 1 180E 0 Condo
HPC 1 180F 0 Condo
HPC 1 200A 28 Leased
HPC 1 233A 0 Condo
HPC 1 247A 27 Unit Storage
HPC 1 263A 22 Shell Space
HPC 1 267A 95 Office
HPC 1 275A 45 Public Restroom
HPC 1 275B 46 Public Restroom
HPC 1 276A 34 Mechanical Space
HPC 1 276B 92 Unit Storage
HPC 1 289A 26 Shell Space
HPC 1 302A 16 Shell Space
HPC 1 317A 52 Shell Space



BUILDING FLOOR ROOM # SQFT USAGE
Indicates 
Tile Floor

1st floor 
Total 
5,788 sq ft

2nd floor 
Total 
4,036 sq ft 

TOTAL 
TILE  9824 
sq ft

LCC 1 100 1000 Lounge
LCC 1 100A 141 Classroom Service
LCC 1 100B 26 Food Facility Service
LCC 1 101 195 Office
LCC 1 101A 54 Unit Storage
LCC 1 101B 139 Office
LCC 1 101C 171 Office
LCC 1 101D 122 Office
LCC 1 101E 121 Office
LCC 1 102 162 Classroom Service
LCC 1 103 26 Public Restroom
LCC 1 104 1023 Classroom
LCC 1 105 26 Public Restroom
LCC 1 106 526 Corridor
LCC 1 107 390 Office
LCC 1 107A 146 Office
LCC 1 107B 24 Public Restroom
LCC 1 107C 173 Office
LCC 1 110 339 Stairwell
LCC 1 112 45 Mechanical Space
LCC 1 113 170 Central Computer
LCC 1 114 784 Classroom
LCC 1 115 300 Office Service
LCC 1 115A 148 Lounge
LCC 1 115B 118 Office
LCC 1 115C 118 Office
LCC 1 116 785 Classroom
LCC 1 118 785 Classroom
LCC 1 119 24 Custodial Closet
LCC 1 120 805 Mechanical Space
LCC 1 121 791 Physical Education
LCC 1 122 262 Stairwell
LCC 1 123 1158 Classroom 1/3 Tile  386 sq ft
LCC 1 123A 284 Unit Storage
LCC 1 123B 51 Public Restroom
LCC 1 124 346 Public Restroom
LCC 1 126 507 Unit Storage
LCC 1 127 213 Office
LCC 1 127A 119 Office
LCC 1 127B 120 Office
LCC 1 127C 164 Office
LCC 1 127D 189 Office
LCC 1 128 341 Public Restroom
LCC 1 130 262 Stairwell

Harper College Learning & Career Center



LCC 1 131 660 Office
LCC 1 131A 106 Office
LCC 1 131B 107 Office
LCC 1 131C 262 Office Service
LCC 1 131D 228 Office Service
LCC 1 131E 97 Office
LCC 1 131F 99 Office
LCC 1 132 784 Classroom
LCC 1 134 784 Classroom
LCC 1 135 831 Classroom
LCC 1 136 784 Classroom
LCC 1 138 784 Classroom
LCC 1 139 384 Office
LCC 1 139A 207 Conference Room
LCC 1 139B 111 Office
LCC 1 139C 111 Office
LCC 1 140 784 Classroom
LCC 1 142 685 Lobby
LCC 1 142A 95 Corridor
LCC 1 144 208 Office
LCC 1 146 94 Unit Storage
LCC 1 148 440 Stairwell
LCC 1 150 62 Elevator
LCC 1 199W 680 Corridor
LCC 1 199X 1281 Corridor
LCC 1 199Y 718 Corridor
LCC 1 199Z 1468 Corridor
LCC 2 200 790 Classroom
LCC 2 201 853 Classroom
LCC 2 202 785 Classroom
LCC 2 203 299 Public Restroom
LCC 2 204 786 Classroom
LCC 2 205 239 Public Restroom
LCC 2 206 513 Stairwell
LCC 2 207 848 Classroom
LCC 2 208 285 Corridor
LCC 2 208A 47 Unit Storage
LCC 2 209 380 Unit Storage
LCC 2 210 785 Classroom
LCC 2 211C 240 Classroom Service
LCC 2 211D 161 Classroom Service
LCC 2 211E 925 Classroom
LCC 2 211F 966 Mechanical Space
LCC 2 212 787 Classroom
LCC 2 213 80 Custodial Closet
LCC 2 214 788 Classroom
LCC 2 215 67 Custodial Closet
LCC 2 216 781 Classroom
LCC 2 218 431 Stairwell



LCC 2 230 431 Stairwell
LCC 2 232 784 Classroom
LCC 2 234 784 Classroom
LCC 2 235 1479 Classroom
LCC 2 235A 161 Unit Storage
LCC 2 236 784 Classroom
LCC 2 237 237 Office
LCC 2 238 784 Classroom
LCC 2 240 785 Classroom
LCC 2 242 785 Office
LCC 2 244 196 Office
LCC 2 246 176 Stairwell
LCC 2 248 288 Unit Storage
LCC 2 250 62 Elevator
LCC 2 299X 1275 Corridor
LCC 2 299Y 824 Corridor
LCC 2 299Z 1448 Corridor
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